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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honotable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Long Beach,
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accotdance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requite that we plan and petform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2009,
and the tespective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 7, 2011, on
out consideration of the City. of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal conttol over financial reporting and on
out tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agteements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial tepotting and compliance and theé results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
petformed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results

of our audit.

Membership in: )
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants » Mississippi Society of Certified Public Accountants * AICPA Private Companies Practice Section
AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Center * AICPA. Center for Audit Quality * AICPA Employee Benefit Plan Audit Quality Center
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Page 2

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary compatison information on pages 4 through 10 and 42 through 44 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is tequited by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an approptiate
opetational, economic, ot historical context. We have applied certain limited procedutes to the required
supplementaty information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Ametica, which consisted of inquities of management about the methods of prepating the information and
compating the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the putpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Long Beach, Missippippi’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section,
combining nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information are presented for
putposes of additional analysis and are not a required pﬂrt of the financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as requited by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Citcular A-133, Awudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund
financial statements and the schedule .of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility - of
management and wete detived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to ptepate the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements ot to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is faitly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
introductoty sectdon and other supplementary information have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion ot provide any assurance on them.

Wolke MQ“MOPP\Q

Pascagoula, Mississippi
January 7, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Introduction

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s (the “City”) activities
and financial performance provides an introduction to the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended
_ September 30, 2009. The information contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis has been prepared by
management and should be considered in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, which follow

this section.

The components of the annual financial report include:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

Other Supplementary Information

The MD&A, a component of RS, introduces the basic financial staterents and provides an analytical overview of the
City’s financial activities.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2009 by $58,137,742. Of this amount,
unrestricted net assets of $12,469,281 may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens

and creditors.

The total net assets increased by $10,139,885. Of this amount, an increase of $5,164,962 was associated with
governmental activities and an increase of $4,974,923 was associated with business-type activities.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $6,788,013, a decrease of $2,488,890 in comparison with the prior year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $4,585,281 or 27.4% of
total general fund expenditures.

The City’s total debt obligations decreased by $771,430 which consisted of principal payments.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009

I. Overview of the Financial Statements
The City’s basic financial statements comprise the following elements:

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances,
in a manner 81m11ar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the

financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only

result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the City include general government, public safety, public works, and culture and recreation. The major business-type
activities of the City include water and sewer and port and harbor operations.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain confrol over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting not only to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements but also to help control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. All of

the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:

e  Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as govermmental activities in
the - government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in

evaluating a government’s near term financing requirements.

The City maintains six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general fund which is considered a major fund. All other governmental funds are combined in
the Other Governmental Funds column. Combining information on these funds can be found in the combining

schedules presented as supplementary information.

e  Proprietary Funds

The City maintains two proprietary funds, one for water and sewer operations and'the other for port and harbor
operations. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type ‘activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City also maintains two enterprise funds. Information for these
funds is presented in the statement of net assets; the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets;

and the statement of cash flows.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

I. Overview of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for more detailed information on the elements of the financial statements.

II. Government-wide Financial Analysis

Table 1 below presents the City’s condensed statements of net assets as of September 30, 2009 and 2008, derived from
the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Table 1: Condensed Statements of Net Assets
As of September 30, 2009 and 2008

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities - Totals
2009 _2(_)08 2009 2008 2009 2008
Current and other assets $ 12,199,964 $ 13,129,146 $ 5,976,712 $ 5,232,346 $ 18,176,676 $ 18,361,492
Capital assets, net 30,237,141 22,439,043 23,614,484 19,276,862 53,851,625 41,715,905
Total assets 42,437,105 35,568,189 29,591,196 24,509,208 72,028,301 60,077,397
Other liabilities 7,535,934 2,285,293 1,973,432 1,282,921 9,509,366 3,568,214
Long-term liabilities 676,217 4,222,904 3,704,976 4,288,422 4,381,193 8,511,326
Total liabilities 8,212,151 6,508,197 5,678,408 5,571,343 13,890,559 12,079,540
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 23,998,935 17,603,663 18,845,383 14,404,637 42,844,318 32,008,300
Restricted 2,070,635 2,307,588 753,508 709,968 2,824,143 3,017,556
Unrestricted 8,1 55,3 84 9,148,741 4,313,897 3,823,260 12,469,281 12,972,001
Total net assets $ 34,224,954 $ 29,059,992 23,912,788 18,937,865 $ 58,137,742 $ 47,997,857

At September 30, 2009 and 2008, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $58 million and $48 million,
respectively. In 2009 and 2008, 74% and 67%, respectively, reflected its investment in capital assets, less any related
debt used to acquire or construct those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens and
businesses in the City; consequently, these net assets are not available for future spending. In 2009 and 2008, 21% and
27%, respectively, of net assets is unrestricted, which can be used to finance government operations. The restricted
amounts pertain to funds to be used for future debt service and drug seizure funds collected by the City to be used to

purchase law enforcement equipment.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

II. Government-wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

Table 2 below presents the C1ty s condensed statements of activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 and
2008, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Table 2: Condensed Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended September 30, 2009 and 2008

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues
Program revenues
Fees, fines and charges for services § 1,784,460 § 1,736471 § 5,000,077 $ 4,707,998 § 6,784,537 § 6,444,469
Operating grants and contributions 1,201,364 2,331,727 199,682 246,068 1,401,046 2,577,795
Capital grants and contributions 6,464,088 4,029,401 3,507,406 1,613,317 9,971,494 5,642,718
Total program revenues 9,449,912 8,097,599 8,707,165 6,567,383 18,157,077 14,664,982
Genqral revenues
Property taxes 4,663,318 3,911,104 - - 4,663,318 3,911,104
Other taxes 101,776 99,960 - - 101,776 99,960
Sales taxes 1,342,947 1,617,517 - - 1,342,947 1,617,517
Grants and contributions not i
restricted to specific programs 1,547,774 827,425 36,283 149,958 1,584,057 977,383
Interest earnings 320,765 201,974 12,115 24,882 332,880 226,856
Insurance proceeds 538,080 - - - 538,080 -
Other 37,198 87,567 - - 37,198 87,567
Total general revenues 8,551,858 6,745,547 48,398 174,840 8,600,256 6,920,387
Total revenues 18,001,770 14,843,146 ‘ 8,755,563 6,742,223 26,757,333 21,585,369
Program expenses
General government 3,974,062 3,321,386 - - 3,974,062 3,321,386
Public safety © 4,965,783 4,865,571 - - 4,965,783 4,865,571
Public works 427,527 933,770 - - 427,527 933,770
Culture and recreation 1,041,085 692,588 - - 1,041,085 692,588
Interest and fiscal charges 156,191 154,748 - - 156,191 154,748
Water and sewer - - 5,077,480 4,089,240 5,077,480 4,089,240
Port and harbor - - 975,320 404,065 975,320 404,065
Total program expenses 10,564,648 9,968,063 6,052,800 4,493,305 16,617,448 14,461,368
Change in net assets before transfers 7,437,122 4,875,083 2,702,763 2,248,918 10,139,885 7,124,001
Transfers (2,272,160) (1,609,969) 2,272,160 1,609,969 - -
Change in net assets 5,164,962 3,265,114 4,974,923 3,858,887 10,139,885 7,124,001
Beginning net assets 29,059,992 25,794,878 18,937,865 15,078,978 47,997,857 40,873,856
Ending net assets $34,224954  $29,059,992 $23,912,788 § 18,937,865 §$ 58,137,742  §$ 47,997,857




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

II. Government-wide Financial Analysis (Continued)

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by approximately $5.2 million and $3.3 million in 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

At the government-wide level, the City reclassified capital outlay (net of depreciation expense) of approximately
$6.4 million in 2009 and $4 million in 2008 to the statement of net assets.

Also on the government-wide statements, the City reduced its long-term debt obligations by approximately
$193,000 in 2009 and $230,000 in 2008 and these expenditures were reclassified to the statement of net assets.
Grants and contributions related to Hurricane Katrina and the related disbursements contributed to an increase of
approximately $2 million in 2009 and a decrease of $1 million in 2008.

The City’s property tax revenue increased approximately $752,000 in 2009 and $128,000 in 2008.

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by approximately $5 million and $3.9 million in 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Key elements of this increase are as follows: '

On the proprietary fund statements, the City reduced its long-term debt obligations by $584,000 in 2009 and

$563,000 in 2008.

Grants and contributions related to Hurricane Katrina and the related disbursements (the majority of which are
capitalized in capital assets) contributed to an increase of approximately $3.7 million in 2009 and $2.3 million in
2008.

Transfers in from the General Fund related to Hurricane Katrina contributed to an increase of approximately $2.3

million in 2009 and $1.6 million in 2008.

III. Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

Funds that experienced significant changes during fiscal year 2009 are as follows:

Governmental Funds

As of the close of the 2009 fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
approximately $6.8 million. '

General Fund

Fund balance at September 30, 2009 totaled approximately $6.1 million, a decrease of $2.6 million during the
fiscal year. The decrease is the result of the following: :

e Grants and contributions related to Hurricane Katrina and the related disbursements decreased
approximately $1.7 million in 2009. The decrease is due primarily to timing differences in recording
revenue between the government-wide and fund levels.

o Expenditures in general government increased $2.6 million due primarily to capital outlay for Hurricane
Katrina-related projects for the Jefferson Davis Revitalization and the new City Hall.

e  Expenditures in culture and recreation increased $2.6 million due primarily to capital outlay for the Senior

Citizens Center.
e Insurance proceeds increased $512,000 due primarily to settlements related to Hurricane Katrina.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

IIL. Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)
Debt Service Funds

Fund balance at September 30, 2009, totaled $579,175 for an increase of $118,116 from the prior year. This
increase is due primarily to a corresponding decrease of $117,506 in required principal payments..

Special Revenue Funds

Fund balance at September 30, 2009, totaled $145,790 for an increase of $3,211 from the prior year. The
increase consisted of interest earnings.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds, the water and sewer and port and harbor funds, reported net assets of
approximately $23.9 million, an increase of $5 million during the fiscal year. The City’s intention for these
funds are for them to be self sufficient but not to accumulate an excessive amount of assets as a result of their
operations. In the current year, the water and sewer fund had an increase of net assets of $4.2 million, which is
primarily due to the items described earlier. The port and harbor fund had an increase of net assets in the amount
of $762,000, which is also described above.

IV. Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity

Capital Asset Activity

At September 30, 2009, the City reported approximately $30.2 million in net capital assets for governmental activities and
$23.6 million in capital assets for business-types activities. Re-construction of assets damaged and/or destroyed as a result
of Hurricane Katrina in August 2005 continued in 2009. Major projects in the governmental activities included the city
hall annex, senior center, fire stations, and the downtown revitalization project resulting in approximately $7.2 million in
construction costs. Major projects in the business-type activities included water and sewer and harbor projects resulting
in a total of approximately $4.6 million in construction costs.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Long-Term Debt Activity

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City héd approximately $4.2 and $4.3 million in outstanding governmental and
proprietary debt, respectively. Refer to Note 6 to the financial statements for additional information on the City’s long-

term debt and other liabilities.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

V. Economic Conditions and Outlook

The City of Long Beach continues to recover from the devastation of Hurricane Katrina in 2005, as well as the slumping
National economy. The City is actively pursuing retailers and other developers to help increase the tax base. The City is
seeking the services of an Economic Development Director to help with this process. Also, with the re-opening of City
Hall on Jeff Davis Ave as well as other downtown revitalization efforts, the City hopes to attract future development in

the downtown corridor.

In the previous months, the City’s Community Disaster Loan (CDL) was forgiven by FEMA. This will provide
significant debt relief for the City. Even with this relief, the Administration expects that complete recovery is still several

years away.

V1. Contact the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Long Beach’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional information should be addressed to the City Clerk, Rebecca Schruff, at 201 Jeff Davis Avenue, Long Beach,

Mississippi 39560.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30,2009
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 712324 3 20,608 $ 732,932
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 5,544,986 993,571 6,538,557
Receivables, net 324,730 511,236 835,966
Internal balances (24,740) 24,740 -
Due from other governments 3,097,555 3,388,832 6,486,387
Inventories - 958 958
Other receivables 232,103 - 232,103
Prepaid expenses ) 101,264 - 101,264
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,908,371 457,514 2,365,885

Pooled cash and cash equivalents 136,151 308,567 444,718

Certificates of deposit 162,484 270,686 433,170
Other assets, net 4,736 - 4,736
Capital assets

Land, improvements, and construction in progress 15,109,836 4,636,199 19,746,035

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 15,127,305 18,978,285 34,105,590

Total capital assets 30,237,141 23,614,484 53,851,625
Total assets 42,437,105 29,591,196 72,028,301
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 2,783,018 684,755 3,467,773
Interest payable 218,134 89,431 307,565
Other accrued liabilities ' 19,927 - 19,927
Due to other governmental agencies - 265,971 265,971
Deferred revenues 930,616 42,158 972,774
Compensated absences, current 17,831 5,256 23,087
Capital leases payable, current . 52,547 - 52,547
Bonds and notes payable, current 1,113,861 577,294 1,691,155
Payable from restricted assets:

Customer deposits - 308,567 308,567
Compensated absences, noncurrent 243,455 - 243,455
Capital leases payable, noncurrent 142,957 - 142,957
Bonds and notes payable, noncurrent 2,689,805 3,704,976 6,394,781

8,212,151 5,678,408 13,890,559
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 23,998,935 18,845,383 42,844318
Restricted for: :
Debt service 579,175 - 579,175
Other purposes 1,491,460 753,508 2,244,968
Unrestricted 8,155,384 4,313,897 12,469,281

Total net assets $ 34,224,954

$ 23,912,788

$ 58,137,742

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 711,026 $ 1,298 § 712,324
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 5,544,986 - 5,544,986
Receivables 320,721 4,009 324,730
Due from other governments 3,097,555 - 3,097,555
Other receivables 216,944 15,159 232,103
Advances to other funds 174,099 - 174,099
Prepaid expenses 101,264 - 101,264
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,192,825 715,546 1,908,371
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 136,151 - 136,151
Certificates of deposit - 162,484 162,484
Total assets $ 11,495,571 $ 898,496 $ 12,394,067
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,614,697 3 - $ 2,614,697
Accrued liabilities 19,927 - 19,927
Deferred revenue 2,754,760 - 2,754,760
Compensated absences 17,831 - 17,831
Advances from other funds 25,308 173,531 198,839
Total liabilities 5,432,523 173,531 5,606,054
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Advances 148,791 - 148,791
Other purposes 1,328,976 - 1,328,976
Unreserved 4,585,281 - 4,585,281
Unreserved, reported in non-major:
Special revenue funds - 145,790 145,790
Reserved, reported in nonmajor:
Debt service funds - 579,175 579,175
Total fund balances 6,063,048 724,965 6,788,013
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 11,495,571 $ 898496 $ 12,394,067

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Total fund balance, governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in this fund financial statement, but are reported
in the governmenta] activities of the Statement of Net Assets.

Certain other long-term assets are not available to pay current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in this fund financial statement, but
are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Assets.

Some liabilities (such as notes payable, capital lease contract payable, long-
term compensated absences, and bonds and notes payable ) are not due and
payable in the current period and are not included in the fund financial
statement, but are included in the governmental activities of the Statement of

Net Assets.

Net assets of governmental activities

$ 6,788,013

30,237,141

1,828,886

(4,629,086)
$ 34,224,954

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 4,298,312 $ 365,006 $ 4,663,318
Sales taxes 1,342,947 - 1,342,947
Franchise taxes ' 624,654 - ' 624,654
Fees and fines : 629,037 - 629,037
Licenses and permits 276,929. - 276,929
Intergovernmental 7,871,088 - 7,871,088
Charges for services 254,840 - 254,840
Investment earnings 317,050 3,715 320,765
Donations 251,138 - 251,138
Miscellaneous 35,944 - 35,944
Total revenues ' 15,901,939 368,721 16,270,660
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 7,826,277 - 7,826,277
Public safety 5,109,806 - 5,109,806
Public works .- 438,653 - 438,653
Culture and recreation 3,353,495 - 3,353,495
Debt Service:
Principal - 186,994 186,994
Interest and other charges - 110,245 110,245
Total expenditures 16,728,231 297,239 17,025,470
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (826,292) 71,482 (754,810)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
Insurance proceeds 538,080 - 538,080
Transfers in 1,841,690 50,390 1,892,080
Transfers out (4,163,695) (545) (4,164,240)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,783,925) 49,845 (1,734,080)
Net change in fund balances (2,610,217) 121,327 (2,488,890)
Fund balances - beginning 8,673,265 603,638 9,276,903
Fund balances - ending $ 6,063,048 $ 724965 $ 6,788,013

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because such
outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of Activities
reports only a portion of the outlay as expense. The outlay is allocated over the

assets' estimated useful lives as depreciation expense for the period.
This is the amount by which capital outlays (§7,026,770) exceeded depreciation

($665,147) in the current period.

Governmental funds do not present donated capital assets as contributions. In
contrast, such contributions are reported in the Statement of Activities.

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from sale of an
asset as revenue because it provides current financial resources. In contrast, the
Statement of Activities reports only the gain or loss on the sale of the assets. Thus,
the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net book

value of the asset sold.

Governmental funds do not present revenues that are not available to pay current
obligations. In contrast, such revenues are reported in the Statement of Activities

when earned.

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as current financial resources. In contrast,
the Statement of Activities treats such issuance of debt as a liability. Governmental
funds report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure. In contrast, the
Statement of Activities treats such repayments as a reduction in long-term liabilities.
This is the amount by which repayments exceeded proceeds.

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds:
Accrued interest not reflected on Governmental funds
Compensated absences not reflected on Governmental funds

Change in net assets of governmental activities

$ (2,488,890)

6,361,623

1,296,886

(28,738)

(103,855)

186,994

(5,682)

(45,946)
(7,430)

$ 5,164,962

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds

‘ Port and
Water and Sewer Harbor Total
ASSETS :
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,255 $ 353 20,608
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 716,068 277,503 993,571
Accounts receivable, net 469,560 . 41,676 511,236
Due from other governments 2,113,027 1,275,805 3,388,832
Advances to other funds 25,308 o o- 25,308
Inventories - 958 958
Total current assets 3,344,218 1,596,295 4,940,513
Non-current assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 457,514 - 457,514
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 308,567 - 308,567
Certificates of deposit 270,686 - 270,686
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 4,199,338 436,861 4,636,199
Other capital assets, i
net of accumulated depreciation 16,470,379 2,507,906 18,978,285
Total non-current assets 21,706,484 2,944,767 24,651,251
Total assets 25,050,702 4,541,062 29,591,764
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities: '
Accounts payable 658,233 26,522 684,755
Accrued interest payable 89,431 - 89,431
Advances from other funds - 568 568
Payable to other governments 264,532 1,439 265,971
Deferred revenue ‘ 42,158 - 42,158
Compensated absences 622 4,634 5,256
Bonds, notes and loans payable 577,294 - 577,294
Payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 308,567 - 308,567
Total current liabilities 1,940,837 33,163 1,974,000
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds, notes and loans payable 3,704,976 - 3,704,976
Total non-current liabilities 3,704,976 - 3,704,976
Total liabilities 5,645,813 33,163 5,678,976
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 15,907,000 2,938,383 18,845,383
Restricted for other purposes 753,508 - 753,508
Unrestricted 2,744,381 1,569,516 4,313,897
Total net assets $ 19,404,889 $ 4,507,899 23,912,788

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services

Materials and supplies
Contractual services

Other services and charges
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating Joss

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue

Operating grants and contributions

Interest expense

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total capital contributions and transfers

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Enterprise Funds
Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total
$ 4,693,805 $ 280,796 $ 4,974,601
25,386 90 25,476
4,719,191 280,886 5,000,077
39,387 202,702 242,089
192,090 182,385 374,475
3,763,459 329,627 4,093,086
300,746 179,216 479,962
628,302 81,_390 709,692
4,923,984 » 975,320 5,899,304
(204,793) (694,434) (899,227)
12,116 - 12,116
4,741 231,223 235,964
(153,496) - (15_3,496)
(136,639) 231,223 94,584
(341,432) (463,211) (804,643)
3,087,435 419,971 3,507,406
3,230,054 1,136,030 4,366,084
(1,763,624) (330,300) (2,093,924)
4,553,865 1,225,701 5,779,566
4,212,433 762,490 4,974,923
15,192,456 3,745,409 18,937,865
$19,404,889 $ 4,507,899 $23,912,788




CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds

Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 4,710,429 $ 260,865 $ 4,971,294
Payments to suppliers (3,768,571) (682,275) (4,450,846).
Payments to employees (41,084) (201,092) (242,176)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 900,774 (622,502) 278,272
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
Proceeds from operating grants and contributions 4,741 231,223 235,964
Transfers from other funds 1,466,430 805,730 2,272,160
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 1,471,171 1,036,953 2,508,124
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ,
Purchases and construction of capital assets (3,916,548) (469,409) (4,385,957).
Proceeds from capital grants 1,362,613 123 1,362,736
Principal paid on capital debt (584,436) - (584,436)
Interest paid on capital debt (133,301) - (133,301)
Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities (3,271,672) (469,286) (3,740,958)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Restricted customer deposits 12,045 - 12,045
Proceeds of certificates of deposit 439,282 - 439,282
Interest received 12,116 - 12,116
Net cash provided by investing activities 463,443 - 463,443
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (436,284) (54,835) (491,119)
Balances-beginning of the year 1,938,688 332,691 2,271,379
Balances-end of the year $ 1,502,404 § 277,856 $ 1,780,260
NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Infrastructure donated by developers $§ 496,582 $ - $ 496,582
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Unrestricted:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,255 $ 353 $ 20,608
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 716,068 277,503 993,571
Restricted: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents 457,514 - 457,514
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 308,567 - 308,567
$ 1,502,404 § 277,856 $ 1,780,260
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Enterprise Funds
Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss $ (204,793) $ (694,434) $ (899,227)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: .
Depreciation and amortization expense 628,302 81,390 709,692
Bad debt expense ' 1,132 23,711 24,843
Increase in current assets
Accounts receivable . (4,845) (43,732) (48,577)
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable 328,905 10,458 339,363
Payable to other governments 158,819 (1,505) 157,314
Accrued liabilities (5,049) o- (5,049)
Compensated absences 1,697) 1,610 (87
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 900,774 $ (622,502) $ 278272
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FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENT




CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIDUCIARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
Tax Collector
Clearing Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents y $ 230516
Property tax receivables 62,982
Total assets 3 293,498
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities $ 230,516
Due to other governments 62,982
Total liabilities B 293,498

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I. Introduction

The City of Long Beach, Mississippi, (City) was incorporated August 10, 1905, under the laws of the State of
Mississippi. The City operates under a Mayor-Board form of government. The following services are provided by the
City: Public Safety (Police, Fire and Protection/Inspection), Street Maintenance, Garbage Collection, Water and Sewer,
Social and Recreational, Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services. -

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are discussed in
subsequent sections of this Note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide explanations, including required
disclosures, of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

1L Financial Reporting Entity

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including organizations
as component units of the City consist of oversight responsibility, special financing relationships and scope of public
services. Oversight responsibility is determined by the extent of financial interdependency, control over the selection of
the governing authority and management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal

matters. Based on these criteria, the City has no component units.
III. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report

information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by .

taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance
annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund
the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to developers. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though
the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

(A) Basis of Accounting

The City complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable
to governmental entities, and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the
accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Proprietary funds apply
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB

pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

(A) Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The governmerit-wide financial statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within funds).
Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although
internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded

when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in.

the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. The City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, or within 90 days if received from FEMA. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental
revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received by the City.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the
primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers
for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include
administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating

in the financial statements.
(B) Fund Types and Major Funds
Governmental Funds

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund — The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Proprietary Funds

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water and Sewer Fund — The utility fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing water, sewer, gas, and garbage services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered

primarily through user charges.

Port and Harbor Fund — The port and harbor fund accounts for the activities and operations of the City-operated
harbor.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
(B) Fund Types and Major Funds (Continued)

Other Fund Types

The City also reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds — The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than special assessments, expendable trust, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for

specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds — The debt service funds are used to account for the servicing of long-term general obligation debt
of the governmental funds,

Capital Projects Fund — The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital improvements and facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).

Fiduciary Fund — The tax collector fund is used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capac;lty or as an agent
for other governmental units.

(C) Use of Estimates

The preparatxon of ﬁnanc1a1 statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. '

V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

(A) Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are primarily considered to be cash on hand and amounts held in demand deposits.
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, short-term investments held in proprietary funds with a maturity date within
three months of the date acquired by the City, if any, are considered to be cash equivalents.

The City maintains and controls a major cash pool in which the majority of the City’s funds share. Each fund’s portion

of the pool is displayed on their respective balance sheet as “pooled cash and cash equivalents,” some of which are
restricted assets. In addition, non-pooled cash is separately held and reflected in their respective funds as “cash and cash

equivalents,” some of which are restricted assets.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) direct obligations of the United States government, the payment of which
the full faith and credit of the United States government is pledged, (2) certificates of deposit when insured or secured by
acceptable collateral and (3) obligations of the State of Mississippi, or any county, municipality or school district of the
State of Mississippi which have been approved by a reputable bond attorney or have been validated by the decree of the
chancery court. Investments are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.

See Note 2 for information regarding collateral pledged against the City’s deposits.

(B) Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds.” All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

(B) Receivables and Payables (Continued)

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available

financial resources.

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. An allowance has been provided in the Water and

" Sewer fund for estimated uncollectible utility charges. The allowance amount is estimated based on the aging of the
receivables, historical collection experience and other relevant circumstances. As of September 30, 2009, the allowances
for uncollectible water and sewer charges and for dockage fees are $471,391 and $62,513, respectively .

.(C) Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit périods beyond September 30, 2009, are recorded as prepaid
items.

(D) Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding of the
availability of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws.
When both restricted and nonrestricted assets are available for use, the policy is to use restricted assets first.

(E) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), net of depreciation, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The City generally capitalizes assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of

donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are
not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during
the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets

constructed. No interest cost was capitalized during the current fiscal year.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Buildings 50 years
Building improvements 20 years
Public domain infrastructure 20— 50 years
Utility system infrastructure 10 —50 years
Machinery and equipment 3—15 years
Vehicles 5 years

Office furniture and equipment 5 —10 years
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

(F)- Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs and bond premiums and discounts are
capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and

amortized over the term of the related debt.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources of
the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. '

(G) Compensated Absences

The City’s policy requires employees to take vacation time earned in the calendar year following the calendar year in
which the leave was earned. All unused vacation time is forfeited. Employees may accumulate up to ninety days of sick
leave. It is the City’s policy that all unused sick leave is forfeited upon termination, retirement, lay-off or cause.
Retiring and terminating employees are paid for all unused vacation and unused comp time. All accumulated vacation
and comp time pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the
fund financial statements, a liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

The compensated absences liability was computed using the specific identification method whereby the actual number of
vacation hours is multiplied by the employee’s hourly rate at September 30, 2009. The resulting liability is then
increased to include social security and retirement contributions that the City is required to pay upon liquidation of the

liability.
(H) Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Such reservations
consist of net assets in drug seizure, unemployment, special revenue, and debt service funds. Designations of fund

balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

(D) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of accumnulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used
for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS

(A) Cash

The City deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the City’s Board of Aldermen in accordance with Mississippi
statutes. Mississippi statutes allow municipalities to select depositories on the basis of competitive bid. A summary of
cash (including restricted cash) as of September 30, 2009, follows:

Pooled
Cash on Cash Cash
Hand Deposits Deposits Total
Governmental Activities _
General Fund ' $ - $ 1,903,851 $ 5,681,137 $ 7,584,988
Other Governmental Funds - 716,844 - 716,844
Total . governmental activities - 2,620,695 5,681,137 8,301,832
" Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds: .
Water and Sewer Fund 225 477,544 1,024,635 1,502,404
Port and Harbor Fund 353 - 277,503 277,856
Total business-type activities 578 - 477,544 1,302,138 1,780,260
Fiduciary Fund - 230,516 - 230,516
Total cash and cash equivalents $ " 578 $ 3,328,755 $ 6,983,275 $ 10,312,608
The City maintained the following restricted assets as of September 30, 2009:
Governmental Activities
Cash and cash equivalents

Drug seizure funds $ 68,850

Debt service funds 715,546

Fire rebate funds . 136,151

Hancock Bank - MDB Loans 98,394

Restricted donations - Mittal Steel USA 1,008,305

Unemployment funds . 17,276

Certificates of deposit - capital asset 162,484

Total restricted assets - governmental activities 2,207,006

Business-Type Activities
Cash and cash equivalents

Utility customer deposits ’ 308,567

Escrow funds from developers 457,514

Certificates of deposit - escrow funds from developers 270,686

Total restricted assets - business-type activities 1,036,767

Total restricted assets $ 3,243,773

From January 2006 through September 30, 2009, Mittal Steel USA has donated a total $1,750,000 in financial support to
assist the City in its efforts to restore and rebuild the City’s public buildings and infrastructure damaged or destroyed by
Hurricane Katrina. The funds are held in an escrow account and are disbursed as costs are incurred.
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(A) Cash (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the City will not be
able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have a
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State Treasurer manages that risk on behalf of the City.
Depositories must be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized in an amount equal
to 105% of the uninsured deposit. The collateral is held in the name of the State Treasurer under a program established
by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5 of the Mississippi Code. Under this program,
the City’s funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions
holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a
financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. By using this multiple financial institution
collateral pool, none of the City’s deposits at September 30, 2009, were exposed to custodial credit risk.

At September 30, 2009, deposits (including restricted deposits) are as follows:

Bank Carrying
Balance Amount
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,131,092 $ .10,312,608

(B) Investments

At September 30, 2009, the City held the following certificates of deposit with maturity dates of longer than three
months:

Balance Balance
October 1, September
- 2008 Purchases Maturities 2009

Governmental Activities:
Peoples Bank, 2.75% interest,
matured February 11, 2009 $ 106,015 $ 2928 $(108,943) § -

Peoples Bank, 2.75% interest,

-matured February 8, 2008 52,102 1,439 (63,541) -
Peoples Bank, 1.54% interest, ‘
matures August 8, 2010 - 108,943 - 108,943
Peoples Bank, 1.55% interest,
matures August 8, 2010 - 53,541 - 53,541
Total governmental activities 158,117 166,851 (162,484) 162,484

Business-type Activities:
Whitney Bank, 2.55% interest,

matured January 17, 2009 267,807 2,879 (270,686) -
Whitney Bank, 1.50% interest,
matures July 27, 2010 - 270,686 - 270,686
Peoples Bank, 2.75% interest, :
matured February 8, 2009 442,161 12,212 (454,373) -
Total business-type activities 709,968 285,777 (725,059) 270,686
Total $ 868,085 $ 452,628 $(887,543) $ 433,170
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(B) Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk — Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The
City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, since the City only invests in certificates of deposit
with maturities of one year or less from qualified depositories, the City does not believe it is exposed to interest rate risk

Credit Risk — Investments

Credit risk is generally the risk that issues of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
The City has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to credit risk. However, Mississippi State
Code limits investment of surplus funds to certificates of deposit with qualified depositories and in bonds and direct
obligations of the United States of America; or the State of Mississippi; or any county, municipality or school district of
the State of Mississippi which have been approved by a reputable bond attorney or have been validated by the decree of
the chancery court. The City invests its surplus funds in certificates of deposit and does not believe that it is exposed to

credit risk.
NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2009 consist of the following: '

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water and Port and
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor
Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Property taxes $ 53,475 - $ 4,009 $ - $ - $ 57484
Franchise taxes 174,151 - - - 174,151
Accounts, gross - - 940,951 104,189 1,045,140
Local support, gross 30,000 - - - 30,000
Court fines, gross 63,095 - - - 63,095
Total receivables, gross 320,721 4,009 940,951 104,189 1,369,870
Less allowance for
doubtful receivables - - (471,391) (62,513) (533,904)
Total receivables, net $ 320,721 $ 4,009 $ 469,560 $ 41,676 $ 835,966
Due from fiduciary fund $ 216944 $ 13,572 $ - $ - $ 230,516
Interest receivable - 1,587 - - 1,587
Total other receivables $ 216,944 $ 15,159 $ - $ - $ 232,103

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. Deferred revenue at September 30, 2009 consists primarily of

grant awards received but not earned.

Property Taxes

Harrison County bills and collects-the real, personal, and auto ad valorem taxes for the City. Taxes on real and personal
property are levied by the Board at the first regular meeting in September for the ensuing fiscal year, which begins on
October 1. Restrictions associated with property tax levies vary with the statutory authority. State law limits the amount
of increase in certain property taxes. Generally, this restriction provides that these tax levies shall produce no more than
110% of the amount that resulted from the assessments of the previous year plus new construction.
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NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Real property taxes become a lien on January 1 and personal property taxes become a lien on March 1 of the current
calendar year. Taxes on both real and personal property, however, are due on or before February 1 of the next
succeeding year. Taxes on motor vehicles and mobile homes become a lien and are due in the month that coincides with
the month of original purchase. All taxes are remitted monthly to the City. In addition, Harrison County also remits to
the City a pro-rata share of road and bridge taxes collected by the County. Accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require property taxes to be recognized at the levy date if measurable and available. All
property taxes are recognized as revenue when received. Real property taxes are recognized as revenue when received
because most delinquent real property taxes are collected by selling real property for taxes, together with all fees,
penalties and damages accruing until date of sale, before the close of the fiscal year. The remaining amount of real
property not sold for taxes at the tax sale is considered immaterial; therefore, no end of year delinquent taxes receivable
is recorded. The amount of delinquent personal property taxes unpaid at year-end is also considered immaterial.

The rates are expressed in terms of mills (i.e., ten mills equal one cent). The combined tax rate to finance general
governmental services, including the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt and other purposes for the year
ended September 30, 2009, was 48.98 mills or $48.98 per $1,000 of assessed valuation. A summary of the assessed
valuations and tax levies of the City for the year ended September 30, 2009 have been provided below.

State law requires the municipality to exercise its taxing authority for the benefit of other goveming authorities, which
are not a part of the reporting entity. As provided, the municipality must levy specified ad valorem taxes as directed by
the other governing authority and turn all proceeds over to it. Accordingly, taxes for the Long Beach School District are
also billed and collected by the County and remitted to the City for disbursement to the School District.

Ad valorem taxes collected and settled in accordance with this legal requirement are not recognized as revenues and
expenditures of the municipality. The tax levies noted below with respect to the school funds were made in accordance

with this legal requirement.

The assessed valuations of the City and the School District for the year ended September 30, 2009 are as follows:

CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Real property $ 79,869,515 Real property § 86,751,834
Personal property 4,835,738 Personal property 8,184,465
Public utilities 3,353,489 Public utilities 3,571,870
Automobiles 15,680,932 Automobiles 16,727,683
Mobile homes 3,384 Mobile homes 35,684
Total - City $ 103,743,058 Total - School District: $ 115,271,536

The tax levies for the City and the School District for the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as
follows:

AN

2009 2008 2007

CITY
General fund 44.63 44.63 44.63
City bond and interest fund 435 4.35 4.35
Total city administered funds 48.98 48.98 48.98
SCHOOL DISTRICT
Shortfall notes 1.75 1.75 1.75
School bond and interest fund - - -
School building program 3.00 3.00 3.00
District maintenance funds 55.00 55.00 55.00
Total school administered funds 59.75 59.75 59.75

Total tax levy _ 108.73 108.73 108.73
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NOTE 4: DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Due from other governments at September 30, 2009 consists of the following:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
, Other Water and' Port and
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor
Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Due from other
governments
Sales tax $ 236,313 8 - $ - $ - $ 236313
Grants ‘ 2,861,242 - 2,113,027 1,275,805 6,250,074
Total due from

other governments $ 3,097,555 $ - $ 2,113,027 $ 1,275,805 $ 6,486,387

Sales Taxes

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.5% of the amount collected (within the corporate boundaries
of the City of Long Beach) back to the City monthly. Sales tax revenue was $1,342,947 for the year ended September
30, 2009 and is included in intergovernmental revenues — sales tax on the Statement of Activities. Sales taxes receivable
consists of taxes collected by the State for August and September 2009 not received by the City until October and

November 2009.

NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2009 is as follows:

Balance Balance
October 1, Disposals / September 30,
2008 Additions Transfers 2009
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,373,918 $ - $ - $ 5373918
Construction in progress 2,560,800 7,175,118 9,735,918
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 7,934,718 7,175,118 - 15,109,836
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,655,238 69,979 - 3,725,217
Improvements other than buildings 119,954 - - 119,954
Machinery and equipment 1,303,044 - (13,024) 1,290,020
Infrastructure 18,313,110 1,196,886 - 19,509,996
Vehicles 2,531,777 50,000 (164,995) 2,416,782
Total capital assets, )
being depreciated 25,923,123 1,316,865 (178,019) 27,061,969
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (422,316) (73,262) - (495,578)
Improvements other than buildings (81,237) (1,983) - (83,220)
Machinery and equipment (507,941) (131,151) 10,283 (628,809)
Infrastructure (9,209,846) (256,556) - (9,466,402)
Vehicles (1,197,458) - (202,195) 138,998 (1,260,655)
Total accumulated depreciation (11,418,798) (665,147) 149,281 (11,934,664)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 14,504,325 651,718 (28,738) 15,127,305
Total governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 22,439,043 $ 7,826,836 $  (28,738) $§ 30,237,141
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Balance Balance
October 1, Disposals / September 30,
2008 Additions Transfers 2009
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 387425 $ - $ - $ 387,425
Construction in progress 366,630 4,550,732 (668,588) 4,248,774
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 754,055 4,550,732 (668,588) 4,636,199
Capital assets, being depreciated: '
Buildings and improvements 6,749,902 346,012 - 7,095,914
Harbor structures and improvements 2,466,031 322,575 - 2,788,606
Water and sewer system 17,024,374 496,583 - 17,520,957
Machinery and equipment 158,937 - - 158,937
Vehicles 59,322 - - 59,322
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 26,458,566 1,165,170 - 27,623,736
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (14,871) (303,591) - (318,462)
Harbor structures and improvements (203,722) (79,735) - (283,457)
Water and sewer system : (7,614,494) (303,081) - (7,917,575)
Machinery and equipment (70,307) (15,334) - (85,641)
Vehicles (32,365) (7,951) - (40,316)
Total accumulated depreciation (7,935,759) (709,692) - (8,645,451)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 18,522,807 455,478 - 18,978,285
Total business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 19,276,862 $ 5,006,210 $ (668,588) $ 23,614,484

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Total governmental activities
depreciation expense

Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer
Port and Harbor
Total business-type activities
depreciation expense
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in long-term debt during the year ended September 30, 2009, are as follows:

Balance Principal Balance
October 1, Payments/ September 30, Due within
2008 Additions Reductions 2009 One Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 1,125,000 $ - $ (130,000) $ 995,000 $ 140,000
Notes 12,828,467 - (19,801) 2,808,666 973,861
"Capital leases 232,697 - (37,193) 195,504 52,547
Compensated absences 267,310 - (6,024) 261,286 17,831
Total governmental activities $ 4,453,474 $ - $ (193,018) $ 4,260,456 $ 1,184,239
Business-Type Activities
General obligation bonds 190,000 $ - $  (35,000) $ 155,000 $ 35000
Notes 4,676,706 - (549,436) 4,127,270 542,294
Compensated absences 5,343 - 87) 5,256 5,256
Total business-type activities $ 4,872,049 $ - $ (584,523) $ 4,287,526 $ 582,550
See Note 15 for subsequent events related to long-term debt.
(A) Bonds Payable
At September 30, 2009, the City’s outstanding bonds payable are described as follows:
Final Balance
Date of Maturity Original September 30,
Issue Date Rates Issue 2009
Governmental Activities:

General obligation bonds: v
Public Improvement 1992A 12/1/1992 12/1/2012 5.0%-7.1% $ 592,000 $ 180,000
Public Improvement 1996 5/1/1996 5/16/2016 4.8%- 6.5% 1,700,000 815,000 .

Total bonds - governmental activities 2,292,000 995,000
Business-Type Activities:

General obligation bonds:

Water and Sewer 1992B 12/1/1992 2/1/2012 5.0% - 6.25% 530,000 155,000
Total bonds payable $ 2,822,000 $ 1,150,000

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. The water and sewer

general obligation bonds are repaid from resources generated by the water and sewer enterprise fund.

General obligation bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with certain amounts of principal maturing each year. The

" annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
(A) Bonds Payable (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements
2010 $ 140,000 $ 55325 $ 35,000 $ 8,585 $ 238,910
2011 150,000 47,279 40,000 6,250 243,529
2012 155,000 38,691 40,000 3,750 237,441 )
2013 165,000 29,563 40,000 1,250 235,813
2014 120,000 21,560 - - 141,560
2015-2019 265,000 22,400 - - 287,400
Total $ 995,000 $ 214,818 $ 155,000 $ 19,835 $ 1,384,653
(B) Notes Payable
At September 30, 2009, the City’s outstanding notes payable are described as follows:
Balance
Date Maturity Interest Original September 30,
Issued Date Rate Amount 2009
Governmental Activities:
State of Mississippi, Capital Improvements
(CAP) Fund, Fire Station improvements note 7/10/1995 12/10/2010 4.25% $ 479,550 $ 2,047
FEMA - Community disaster loan 3/9/2006 12/21/2010 2.70% 1,834,805 1,834,805
Mississippi Development Bank Promisory Note,
Refinanced 8/1/2007 8/10/2010 .,  variable 971,814 971,814
Total notes payable - governmental activities 3,286,169 2,808,666
Business-Type Activities:
State of Mississippi, State Revolving Fund Loan 7/1/1994 4/1/2014 3.75% 369,228 152,978
State of Mississippi, State Revolving Fund Loan 10/1/1992 11/1/2011 2.50% 3,105,015 681,231
State of Missisippi, Drinking Water Improvement
(Well) Revolving Fund Loan 11/18/1997 4/1/2019 4.50% 358,123 244,195
State of Missisippi, Drinking Water Improvement
(Main) Revolving Fund Loan 11/18/1997 4/1/2019 4.50% 888,538 607,486
State of Mississippi, State Revolving Fund Loan 11/27/1997 1/27/2019 4.50% 807,429 554,425
State of Mississppi, State Revolving Fund Loan 3/31/2000 4/1/2021 3.00% 520,336 392,068
State of Missisippi, Drinking Water Improvement
Revolving Fund Loan 3/31/2000 4/1/2021 3.00% 274,823 205,338
State of Mississippi, Capital Improvements
(CAP) Fund 5/1/2001 4/1/2021 3.00% 191,762 4,115
State of Mississippi, Drinking Water Improvement
(SE Long Beach) Revolving Fund Loan 1/30/2007 2/1/2017 2.00% 500,000 352,931
Community Disaster Loan 4/3/2006 3/7/2011 2.38% 932,503 932,503
7,947,757 4,127,270

Total notes payable - business-type activities

Total notes payable
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)-
(B) Notes Payable (Continued)

Principal and interest maturities will be as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements
2010 § 973,861 $ 42,282 $ 542,294 $ 107,698 $ 1,666,135
2011 1,834,805 - 235,399 1,488,717 197,134 3,756,055
2012 - - 300,866 73,963 374,829
2013 - - 256,243 64,383 320,626
2014 - - 246,995 55,129 302,124
20152019 - - 1,047,494 145,568 1,193,062
2020-2024 - - 244,661 8,764 253,425

Total $ 2,808,666 $ 277,681 $ 4,127,270 $ 652,639 $ 7,866,256

(C) Capital Leases
At September 30, 2009, the City had the following outstanding capital leases:

Balance
Original September 30,
Amount 2009
Governmental Activities:
Capital lease payable to bank, dated September 5, 2000, secured by a
fire truck, bearing an interest rate of 5.50%, payable in annual
instaliments of $50,351 through October 5, 2012 $ 427,525 $ 185,730
Capital lease payable to bank, dated May 5, 2005, secured by police
vehicles, bearing an interest rate of 3.69%, payable in annual
installments of $10,241 through May 5, 2010 45,515 9,774
Total capital leases $ 473,040 $ 195,504

The future mininum lease obligatidn and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of September 30,
2009, were as follows:

Year Ending
September 30, Total
2010 $ 60,932
2011 50,351
2012 50,351
2013 50,351
Total minimum lease payments 211,985

Less amount representing interest © (16,481)
Present value of minimum payments $ 195,504
As of September 30, 2009, the cost of the vehicles and equipment under capital leases in the governmental fund was

$473,040 and accumulated depreciation for those assets was $182,442. Depreciation expense associated with the assets
under capital leases in the governmental activities in fiscal year 2009 totaled $20,317 and is included in the statement of

activities, public safety expenses.
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(D) Legal Debt Margin

The City’s legal debt limit for general obligation bonds is $14,136,979. At September 30, 2009, the City’s legal debt
margin, after reduction for outstanding general obligation notes of $4,477,774, was $3,803,666.

NOTE 7: DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The MDOT Grant Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance at Septeniber 30, 2009 of ($18,415). This deficit
will be financed through future revenues of the fund.

NOTE 8: INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balances as of September 30, 2009 were comprised of the following:

(A) Long-term Advances
‘ Advances To

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water and Port and
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor Total
Fund Funds Fund Fund Advances From
Advances From
Governmental Activities:
General $ - $ 173,531 $ - $ 568 $ 174,099
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer 25,308 - - - 25,308
Total Advances To $ 25308 $ 173,531 $ - - 8 568 $ 199,407
(B) Interfund Transfers
Transfers In
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water and Port and ,
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor Total
Fund Funds Fund Fund Transfers Out
Transfers Qut
Governmental Activities:
General 5 - $ 50,390 $ 3,230,054 $ 883,251 $ 4,163,695
Other Nonmajor Funds 545 - - - 545
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer 1,510,845 - - ) 252,779 1,763,624
Port and Harbor ‘ 330,300 - - - 330,300
Total Transfers In $ 1,841,690 $ 50,390 $ 3,230,054 $ 1,136,030 ~ $ 6,258,164

(C) Management Fees

The City’s water and sewer fund and port and harbor fund (proprietary fund types) pay a management fee to the general
fund to cover various costs such as administrative salaries, occupancy costs, etc. Such fees totaled $220,000 for the year
ended September 30, 2009. The fees were included in “charges for services” general government program revenue in the
Statement of Activities and in the general fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds. The corresponding expenditure was included in “expenses” in the water and sewer ($205,000) and
port and harbor ($15,000) funds in the Statement of Activities and “contractual services” expenditures in the water and
sewer and port and harbor funds in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Proprietary

Funds.
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NOTE 9: JOINT VENTURE

Harrison County Utility Authority-

The City is a member of the Harrison County Utility Authority (Authority), which was established by an act of the
Mississippi Legislature to provide for adequate wastewater treatment and solid waste disposal services to the citizens of
Harrison County, Mississippi. The governing board is comprised of one member from each of the cities and county who
are members of the Authority. Through a fifty-year contract, the City is obligated to pay monthly, its pro-rata share of
all operating, administrative, and capital costs of the Authority. Additionally, the City is jointly and severally liable for
all of the liabilities of the Authority. The Authority is classified as a joint venture between the City and the other
members. The following is a synopsis of the Authority's financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30,
2009, a complete copy of which is on file at the administrative offices of the Authority which are located at 14108

Airport Road, Gulfport, Mississippi 39503, or may be obtained by calling (228) 868-8752.

BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS .
Current assets $ 19,229,654
Restricted assets 20,558,389
Property, plant and equipment, net 134,916,759

Deferred charges 1,741,083
Total assets : $ 176,445,885

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current, unrestricted $ 6,064,345

Current, restricted 18,663,883

Long-term liabilities 125,163,863
Total liabilities 149,892,091

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 12,197,266

Restricted for debt service and reserves 19,697,581

Unrestricted (5,341,053)
Total net assets 26,553,794

Total liabilities and net assets $ 176,445,885
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues : $ 17,910,628
Operating expenses (18,022,899)

Depreciation and amortization
Non-operating revenues

Net income

(4,475,247)
51,622,126

§ 47,034,608

The following financial information concerning transactions with the Authority has been included in the City’s financial

statements under the following captions:
Government-wide Financial Statements

Fund Level Financial Statements

Statement of Net Assets

Business-type activities

Due to other governments $ 263,854

Statement of Activities
Business-type activities

Water and sewer expenses $ 2,314,934

Statement of Fund Net Assets

‘Water and sewer

Due to other governments $§ 263,854

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets -
Proprietary Funds

Water and sewer

Contractual services $ 2,314,934
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 10: UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

In lieu of making payments to the Mississippi Department of Employment Security (MDES), the City makes deposits
into a bank account designated for unemployment compensation of an amount equal to 2% of the first $6,000 of covered
employee wages paid in the preceding calendar year. The total funds designated were $31,093 and exceeded the
requirement of $17,276. The amount of contingent liability, if any, the City could be obligated for cannot be determined.

NOTE 11: RETIREMENT PLANS

(A) Public Employees’ Retirement System

The City participates in a retirement system administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi
(PERS). The system is a defined benefit plan and includes a multi-employer, cost-sharing pension plan as described

below:
Plan Description and Provisions

Substantially all of the City’s full-time employees participate in PERS, a multi-employer, cost-sharing, defined
benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State
law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That information
may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street,
Jackson, MS 39201-1005, or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.

Description of Funding Policy

PERS members are required to contribute 7.25% of their annual covered salary and the City is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The rate of annual covered payroll was 11.85% through June 2009
and 12.00% from July through September 2009. The contribution requirements of PERS members are
established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The City’s contributions to PERS
for the years ending September 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, were $495,955, $447,639, and $366,258,

respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

(B) Deferred Compensation Plan

The City, through PERS, offers its employees a voluntary deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or

unforeseeable emergency.

The assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The requirements
of Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g) prescribes that the City does not own the amounts deferred by employees,
including the related income on those amounts. Additionally, the City does not have fiduciary accountability for the
plan. Accordingly, the assets and the liability for compensation deferred by plan participants, including earnings on plan

assets, are not included in the City’s financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPP1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 12: MISSISSIPPI LIBRARY COMMISSION GRANTS

The City received the following funds from the state aid grant programs administered by the Mississippi Library’
Commission during the year-ended September 30, 2009:

Program Grant Number Amount
Health Insurance Grant Program SHG09-25-0 $ 15,975
Life Insurance Grant Program SLG09-25-0 300

$ 16,275

NOTE 13: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(A) Litigation

The City is party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental operations. These legal
proceedings are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the affected funds of the City. The amount of contingent

liability, if any, that the City could be obligated for cannot reasonably be determined.

(B) Grants and Awards

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies,
principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts already collected, might
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The City does not believe any contingent liabilities are material. As of
September 30, 2009, the City owes FEMA $16,493 related to interest earned on funds received.

(C) Contract Commitments

Service Contracts

The City contracts with private contractors for various services. The following represents a significant service
commitment as of September 30, 2009: )

On February 5, 2008, the City entered into a service contract with Utility Partners, LLC dba UP Group, LLC, to provide
professional utility management, operations, and maintenance services for the City’s Public Works operations, consisting
of the following departments: Utility Billing, Water & Sewer Operations, Street and Drainage, Vehicle Maintenance,
and Parks & Recreation. The terms of the original contract were twelve months with a base fee of $1,527,282, 1/12 due
by the 15" of each month and was extended through November 20, 2009. '

Outstanding Construction Commitments

The City had the following outstanding construction commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects as of
September 30, 2009, which will be paid from existing grants:

General government $ 5,306,321

Culture and recreation 153,172
Public safety 3,552,975
Water and sewer 12,852,970
Port and harbor 832,376

5 2697814
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 13: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

(D) Lease Commitments

In May 2006, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the City Court Office. The lease agreement
is for 48 months with payments of $223.69 per month

In May 2006, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Police Department. The lease agreement
is for 48 months with payments of $208.66 per month _

In September 2007, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the City Clerk Office. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $323.73 per month.

In June 2008, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Public Works Office. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $69.87 per month.

In October 2008, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Fire Department.. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $168.75 per month.

In August 2009, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Permits Office. The lease agreement
is for 36 months, beginning in October 2009, with payments of $270.44 per month.

The future noncancelable lease obligation of these leases at September 30, 2009 is as.follows.

Year Ending
Sthember 30,
2010 $ 13,452
2011 5,829
2012 3,245

$ 22,526
NOTE 14: RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is covered for significant losses through commercial insurance carriers except for the following noted as (A)
and (B), which are covered through self-insurance risk pools.

(A) Self-Insurance — Workers Compensation Fund

The City is a member in the Mississippi Municipal Workers’ Compensation Group, Inc. This non-profit corporation is a
self-insurance worker’s compensation fund organized under the non-profit laws of the State of Mississippi. The group is
self-insured under statutory workers compensation protection up to $1,000,000. Members are jointly and severally liable
for the obligations of the group. The possibility of additional liability exists, but that amount, if any, cannot be

determined.

(B) Self-Insurance — Liability Fund

The City is a member in the Mississippi Municipal Liability Plan. The Plan is a private non-profit corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Mississippi. The plan provides liability and tort claims insurance for its members
according to limits established by the Mississippi Tort Claims Act. The plan is totally self-insured with claims and
expenses paid out of the premiums and the members are jointly and severally liable for any claims and expenditures
beyond the premium base. The possibility of additional liability exists, but that amount, if any cannot be determined.

(C) Federal Grants

In the normal course of operations and as a result of the destruction from Hurricane Katrina, the City has received grant
funds from various Federal agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds.
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NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(A) Construction Contracts

Subsequent to year end, the City entered into approximately $4.1 million in construction and engineering contracts and
change orders related to various Katrina-related projects and equipment. These projects will be funded by grants.

(B) Grants

Subsequent to year end, the City obtained new grants of approximately $5.7 million and budget modifications to existing
grants for an increase of approximately $48,000.

(D) Public Services Agreement

In November 2009, the City approved an agreement for public works services with Utility Partners, LLC, for four years
commencing on December 1, 2009 and extending until November 30, 2013. The agreement calls for annual payments of

the following:

Year 1 $ 1,626,834
Year 2 1,673,200
Year 3 1,720,886
Year 4 1,769,932

56790852
(E) Lease Option Agreement

In January 2010, the City approved a lease option agreement with Hancock Bank for equipment totaling $108,041 at
3.2% interest.

(F) School District Collections

In February 2010, the City authorized the Harrison County Tax Collector to settle directly with the Long Beach School
District all school taxes, penalties, and interest collected on their behalf.

(G) Interlocal Agreement

In March 2010 the City entered into an Interlocal Governmental Cooperation Agreement with the Long Beach School
District. The agreement expires May 31, 2014.

(H) Gulf of Mexico Oil Leak

On April 20, 2010, there was a massive oil leak from a deep-sea rig explosion in the Gulf of Mexico. The effect of the
oil leak on the City’s financial position is undeterminable at this time. The City has been awarded a grant from the BP
Deepwater Horizon Response Mississippi Block Grant Program in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 to help the City

with any cost incurred related to clean up.

(I) Loan Cancellation

On December 7, 2010, the City of Long Beach’s application for cancellation of the Special Community Disaster Loan
was approved by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. The entire loan balance, as well as any accrued interest
was cancelled. As of September 30, 2009 the City’s balance on the loan was $932,503 and was included in bonds and

notes payable in the Statement of Net Assets.

(J) Bond Refunding

On July 20, 2010, the City of Long Beach issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 in the amount of
$921,000. These bonds will be used for the purpose of refunding all or a portion of the City’s Promissory Note, Series
2007 and paying related cost of the issuance, sale and delivery of the refunding bonds.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Variance with

Fund balances-ending, budget basis $ - $ 6,403,096

$ 6,088,516

See auditors' report and notes to schedule.
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. Actual Final Budget
Original Final (Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Basis) _(Unfavorable)
REVENUES i
Taxes A , ' A
Property . $ 4,656,352 $ 3,595,398 $ 4,377,958 $ 782,560
Sales ‘ . 1,602,214 1,299,505 1,299,505 -
Licenses, permits, and franchise fees : 1,047,215 882,115 879,566 (2,549)
Intergovernmental . 1,264,205 10,919,264 10,281,313 (637,951)
Charges for services ‘ 247,330 254,840 254,840 -
Interest 50,000 277,062 304,839 27,777
Fines and forfeitures 644,750 614,254 620,777 6,523
Donations 10,000 900,687 640,881 (259,806)
Miscellaneous 29,500 85,682 248,396 162,714
Total revenues 9,551,566 18,828,807 18,908,075 79,268
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Administration 2,416,569 2,262,930 2,224,922 38,008
Court 526,933 512,759 512,754 5
Total general government 2,943,502 2,775,689 2,737,676 38,013
Public safety :
Police 3,594,075 3,134,908 3,019,997 114,911
Fire 2,221,878 2,247,871 2,101,912 145,959
Total public safety . 5,815,953 5,382,779 5,121,909 260,870
Public works
Streets 648,999 3,149,011 3,149,009 2
Vehicles 2,750 - 2,230 2,229 1
Total public works 651,749 3,151,241 3,151,238 3
Culture and recreation
Recreation 132,729 142,272 142,272 -
Senior citizens : 116,862 3,002,570 3,002,568 2
Parks and cemeteries 3,825 731,162 731,160 2
Library 325,492 283,353 255,896 27,457
Total culture and recreation 578,908 4,159,357 4,131,896 27,461
Hurricane ' - 3,602,911 3,602,910 1
Inspections 233,125 ' 150,296 144,622 5,674
Total expenditures 10,223,237 19,222,273 18,890,251 332,022
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures _ (671,671) (393,466) 17,824 411,290
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt proceeds 12,000 - - -
Insurance proceeds - 543,778 543,778 -
Transfers out : - - (725,870) (725,870)
Total other financing sources (uses) 12,000 543,778 (182,092) (725,870)
Net change in fund balances (659,671) 150,312 (164,268) _$ (314,580)
Fund balances-beginning, budget basis 659,671 6,252,784 6,252,784




NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON
SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)
GENERAL FUND




CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (NON-GAAP BASIS)
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE A: BUDGETARY DATA

The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data are as follows:

1.

2.

10.

The City Clerk’s office prepares estimates of available revenue.

Department directors submit proposed expenditure I;udgets to the City Clerk by June 1 each year.

The Mayor and the department directors review expenditure budgets and necessary revisions are made.

Bﬁdgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared. and presented to the Mayor.
The Mayor submits the proposed budget to the Board by August 1.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

The final budget is approved by September 15 and is published in a local newspaper on or before September 30.

The budget is formally amended at the first meeting in September each year. However, budget revisions are made

throughout the year (prior to September), as reallocations of funds are necessary, a budget deficit is indicated, or -

circumstances change which dictate the need for a budget amendment.
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the general fund.

The general fund budget is adopted on a cash basis as required by State statute. The appropriated budget is
prepared by fund, function and department. The legal level of budgetary controls is the department level. The City
Clerk’s office exercises budgetary monitoring throughout the fiscal year. An adopted budget may not exceed its
appropriated level without Board approval. However, department heads may make transfers of appropriations
within a department. Budgetary controls are implemented through the City Clerk’s office through the use of
budget to actual reports. Any purchase requisition that will cause a line item to exceed- its budget will be
disallowed by the City Clerk. The department head will then be required to make an inter-department budget

transfer or request a budget amendment.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents comparisons of legally adopted budgets with actual data on the budgetary
basis. Since accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on the budgetary basis differ from those used
to present financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prlncnples a reconciliation of t1m1ng
differences in the net change in fund balance for the year ended September 30, 2009 is as follows:

Ending fund balance, budgetary basis 4 $ 6,088,516
Cumulative difference between GAAP basis fund .
balance and budget basis fund balance at beginning

of the year 2,420,481
Adjustments to convert receivables (650,310)
Adjustments to convert prepaid expenses (13,001)
Adjustments to convert accounts payable (1,421,664)
Adjustments to convert deferred revenue (374,428)
Adjustments to convert compensated absences 13,454
Ending fund balance, GAAP basis $ 6,063,048
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NOTE B: EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS (BUDGET)
Excess of expenditures over appropriations (budget) for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2009 is as follows:

Final
Budget Actual Excess

Transfers out $ - $ 725,870 $ (725,870)
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
Special Total Nonmajor
Revenue Debt Service Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,298 3 - $ 1,298
Taxes receivable, net v - 4,009 4,009
Other receivables 1,587 13,572 . 15,159
Restricted assets: .
Cash and cash equivalents - 715,546 : 715,546
Certificates of deposit - 162,484 .- 162,484
‘Total assets v $ 165369 § 733127  § . 898,496
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Advances from other funds $ 19,579 $ 153,952 $ 173,531
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Debt service - 579,175 . 579,175
Unreserved 145,790 - 145,790
Total fund balances 145,790 579,175 724,965
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 165,369 $ 733,127 5 898,496

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES '
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Special Total Nonmajor
Revenue Debt Service " Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes$ $ - $ 365,006 $ 365,006
Investment earnings _ : 3,211 504 3,715
Total revenues 3,211 365,510 368,721
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal - : 186,994 186,994
Interest and other charges - 110,245 110,245
Total expenditures - 297,239 297,239
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 3,211 68,271 71,482
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 50,390 50,390
Transfers out - (545) (545)
Total other financing sources and uses - 49,845 49,845
Net change in fund balances 3,211 118,116 121,327
Fund balances - beginning 142,579 461,059 603,638
Fund balances - ending 3 145,790 $ 579,175 $ 724,965

See auditors' repott.
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS




ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables

Restricted assets:
Certificates of deposit

Total assets

CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

- Liabilities:
Advances from other funds

Fund balances: ‘
Unreserved - designated

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
Forestry Contribution
Commission Agreement MDOT
Grant Fund Grant Fund Totals
$ 1,298 % - b - 1,298
- 1,587 - 1,587
- 162,484 - 162,484
$ 1,298 § 164,071 3 - 165,369
5 - 5 1,164 $ 18415 19,579
1,298 162,907 (18,415) 145,790

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,298 $ 164,071 $ -

165,369

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES '
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Forestry Contribution
Commission Agreement MDOT Grant .
Grant Fund Fund Totals

REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 45 $ 3,166 $ - 3 3,211
EXPENDITURES - - - -

Excess of revenues over expenditures 45 3,166 - 3,211
Net change in ﬁnd balances 45 3,166 . - 3,211
Fund balances - beginning © 1,253 159,741 (18,415) 142,579

Fund balances - ending

$ 1,298 3 162,907 $  (18,415) 3 145,790

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
Municipal School Debt
Debt Service Service Total
ASSETS ‘ v
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted $ 605,598 ‘$ 109,948 715,546
Taxes receivable, net 4,009 - 4,009
Other receivables , 13,572 - 13,572
Total assets $ 623,179 $ 109,948 733,127

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: .

Advances from other funds $ 153,952 $ - 153,952
Fund balances:

Reserved for debt service 469,227 109,948 579,175
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 623,179 $ 109,948 733,127

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Municipal School Debt
Debt Service Service Total
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 364,980 $ 26 $ 365,006
. Investment earnings : - 504 ' 504
Total revenues 364,980 530 365,510
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal v 186,994 - 186,994
Interest and other charges 110,245 - 110,245
Total expenditures ! 297,239 - 297,239
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 67,741 530 68,271
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 50,344 46 50,390
Transfers out (545) - (545)
Total other financing sources and uses 49,799 46 "49,845
Net change in fund balances 117,540 576 118,116
Fund balances - beginning 351,687 109,372 461,059
Fund balances - ending $ 469,227 $ 109,948 $ 579,175

See auditors' repott.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR CITY OFFICIALS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Covered Company Amount Expires
Mayor Brierfield Insurance $100,000 6/1/2010
Alderpersons Brierfield Insurance $100,000 7/1/2010
Police Cﬁief Brierfield Insurance $50,000 7/1/2010
Police Brierfield Insurance $25,000 7/1/2010
City Clerk Brierfield Insurance $50,000 8/16/2010

See independent auditors' report.
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: . SCHEDULE 1
CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Grant No./
Grantor Federal Agency / Passed - Through _ " CFDA Pass-Through Identifying Federal
Agency / Program Title ' Number Grantor No. No. Expenditures
US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Office of Community. Planning and Development
Passed through Mississippi Development Authority -
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 14.228 R101-06-009-1 $ 132,011
CDBG/Katrina Supplemental Public Facilities Code Enforcement Grant 14.228. R103-235-01-KCR 3,039,531
14.228  R103-235-01-KP 260,000
14.228 R-109-235-02-KCR 850,724
14228 R-109-235-03-KCR 52,423
14228 R-109-235-04-KCR 169,389
14228  R-103-235-03-KP 27,500
Total US Department of Housing and Urban Development _ 4,531,578
US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed through the State of Mississippi
Department of Public Safety :
Violence Against Women Grants 16.588 03SL.2981 184
16.588 07SL2981 18,683
16.588 08SL2982 6,450
Total Violence Against Women Grants 25,317
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program . 16.607 N/A 2,225
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 16.727 07UA298 1,695
Hurricane Relief Subgrant 16.738 ~ 07HR2981 84,990
. Total US Department of Justice 114227 -
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA)
_Passed through the State of Mississippi
Department of Public Safety '
Occupant Protection Incentive Grant 20.602 090P2031 5,623
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 09TA2031 41,768
Total US Department of Transportation ‘ 47,391
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through Mississippi Department of Human Services/
Southern Mississippi Planning and Development District
Katrina Supplemental Community Development Block Grant 93.667 710VK261-01 1,348,551

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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‘ ' SCHEDULE 1 (Continued)
. CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

' : Grant No./
Grantor Federal Agency / Passed - Through . CFDA. Pass-Through Identifying Federal
Agency / Program Title Number Grantor No. No. Expenditures
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through Mississippi Emergency Mangement Agency v
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Katrina 97.036 1604-DR-MS PW 363 233,770
: ‘ PW 795 114,678
PW1468 . 4,741
PW2235 137,938
PW3244 59,939
PW3247 22,982
PW3289 35,051
PW3372 68,006
PW3444 380,845
PW5079 306,352
PW5852 113,619
PW6860 61,273
PW7291 255,334
PW7955 76,149
PW8803 1,955
PW9059 12,102
PW9901 24,039
PW10078 2,392
PW10692 131,087
PW10860 13,955
PW11111 85,195
PW11123 52,800
PWI11125 961,317
PW11126 239,703
PW11128 26,410
PW11156 18,059
PW11160 28,055
PW11186 7,562
PW11088 791,840
Total Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Katrina 4,267,148
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Gustav 97.036 1604-DR-MS PW118 119,712
Passed through State of Mississippi Emergency Management Agency
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program ‘ : 97.039 DR 1604-0006-MS 11,549
Passed through State of Mississippi Department of Public Safety :
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 04HS234 168
: 97.067 05HS235 750
97.067 06HS235 7,165
: 97.067 07HS236 5,801
Total Homeland Security Grant Program 13,884
Total US Department of Homeland Security 4,412,293
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - $ 10,454,040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE A: BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying Schedule of Expénditures of Federal Awards is included in. the federal grant activity of the City and

is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities; each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of Long Beach; Mississippi’s
basic financial statements and have issued out report theteon dated January 7, 2011. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting -

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Clty of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control
over financial reporting as 2 basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s intetnal control over financial repotting. Accordingly, we do not
express an oplmon on the effectiveness of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over
financial reporung

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of petforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of'deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matetial misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial teporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.
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Repott on Intetnal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accotdance with Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters _
As patt of obtaining reasonable assutance about whether the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s financial

statements are free of material misstatement, we petformed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, conttacts, and grant agteements, noncompliance with which could have a ditect and
matetial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Howevet, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not exptess
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or othet matters that are
tequired to be teported under Government Anditing Standards.

We noted certain ﬁ_natters that we reported to rnanagefnent of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, in a
sepatate letter dated January 7, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Aldetmen, othets
within the entity, and fedetal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these speclﬁed patties.

\J\)o\@ MO ¢ Ova

Pascagoula, Mississippi
January 7, 2011

56




/\? "Wolfe ‘McDuff &Oppie

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Jack A. Oppie, CPA
C. Scott Rankin, CPA

Lindsey M. Henley, CPA
Carolyn H. Rossignol, CPA
Jesse]. Wolfe, CPA (1927-2009)
Grover B. McDuff, CPA. (Retired)

(A Professional Association)

3103 Pascagoula Street * Pascagoula, MS 39567 - Phone: 228-762-6343 - Fax: 228-762-4498 - www.wmocpas.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen
City of Long Beach, Mississippi

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, with the types of compliance |

requirements desctibed in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Citcular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2009.
The City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requitements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responslbﬂlty of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted mn the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organigations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Long Beach,
Mlsslsslppl s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessaty in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for out opinion. Our
.audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, complied, in all matetial respects, with the requitements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programis for the year ended September 30,
20009.
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Each Major Program and on Intetnal Control Over Compliance
In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to federal programs.  In planning and petforming our audit, we considered the City of Long Beach,
Mississippi’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal ‘program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accotdance with OMB Citcular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and cortected, on a timely basis.’

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, ot matetial weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined

above.

This report is intended. solely for the information and use of management, Board of Aldermen, others
within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. :

Pascagoula, Mississippi
January 7, 2011
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

2.

8.

9.

In our repott, out opinion on the financial statements was unqualified.

No teportable conditions .relating to the audit of the financial statements atre
reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Anditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of

Long Beach ate reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reportting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Petformed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No reportable conditions relating to the audit of major federal awards programs ate
repotted in the Report on Compliance with Requitements Applicable to Each Major

Progtam and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular
A-133. ‘

The auditot's teport on compliance for major federal awards program for the City
of Long Beach expresses an unqualified opinion.

There are no audit findings relative to the major federal award prografns for the City
of Long Beach, Mississippi, that are to be reported in Part C of this schedule.

The major programs tested were:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development-Community Development
Block Grants-CFDA No. 14.228

The dollar threshold for distinguishjng Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Long Beach, Mississippi was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINAN CIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None. 1

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS
PROGRAMS AUDIT '

None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH MISSISSIPPI STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Honotable Mayor and Boatrd of Aldermen
City of Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2009 and have issued our report dated January 7, 2011. We have conducted

~ out audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Anditing Standards.

As required by the state legal compliance audit progtam prescribed by the Office of the State Auditot, we
have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The tesults of those procedutes and our audit of the basic financial statements disclosed the following
matetial instance of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. Our findings and recommendations and
your response is as follows:

Finding

All municipalities are requited to have and maintain complete and current inventory lists of each propetty
item with a cost to the municipality of $§500 or mote. There is also certain equipment that should be
recorded regardless of price. The City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s cufrent capitalization policy is not in
accordance with State requirements.

Recommendation

We recommend the City follow the guidance in the Mississippi Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide so
that they may be in compliance with State requirements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With
Mississippi State Laws and Regulations
Page 2

Management’s response

Management plans to draft a new capitalization policy. The City plans to follow the recommendations
outlined in the Mississippi Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide.

This teport is intended for the information of the City’s management and the Office of the State Auditor

and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

ol Mbudl ¢ Qo

Pascagoula, Mississippi
January 7, 2011
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